
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
(RFP) No. 2013-02 

 
For 

The Countywide ADA Eligibility and Certification Program In Solano County 

Response to Questions 
 

Proposals are due Wednesday, February 20, 2013 at 3:00 pm 

Question No. 1 
What is the average cost of one paratransit trip? 
 

Response: 
The average cost of one paratransit trip is approximately $45 per assessment.  This 
information was obtained from the transit operators’ estimated budgets on their FY 
2012-13 Transportation Development Act (TDA) claims.  Rio Vista and Dixon are not 
included as those systems do not operate paratransit service.   

 

Costs of providing ADA service in Solano County 

  

Estimated 
Paratransit 

Operating Cost  
FY 2012-13 Passengers 

Average 
cost per 

passenger 
SolTrans  $         1,588,645  35,264   $            45  
Vacaville  $            464,187  13,500   $            34  
Fairfield  $         1,250,266  22,631   $            55  

Total  $         3,303,098  
   

 
Question No. 2 
What is the total annual cost of paratransit transportation? 

 
Response: 
The total annual cost of paratransit transportation in Solano County is approximately 
$3,303,098. This information was obtained from the transit operators’ estimated budgets 
on their FY 2012-13 Transportation Development Act (TDA) claims.  Rio Vista and 
Dixon are not included as those systems do not operate paratransit service.   

 
Question No. 3 
What is the annual cost for the current evaluation process? 

 



Response: 
Vacaville estimates that the total annual cost for the current evaluation process is 
$16,000.  The other transit operators are unable to provide an accurate annual cost as 
this current evaluation process is embedded into a series of other tasks and 
responsibilities. 

 
Question No. 4 
The RFP states that the total number of applications processed for the county is 1,100.  What is the 
breakdown for the number of applications processed for each of the transit providers individually? 
 

 Response: 
 

Number of ADA Applications FY 2012* 
SolTrans 405     
Vacaville 260     
Fairfield 375     
Rio Vista 8     
Dixon 22     

Total 1070 
     *Includes new applications and recertifications 

 
Question No. 5 
What means will be provided to the Contractor to access the Regional Eligibility Database? Will the 
Contractor have remote access to the system from any office location of its choosing?  

 
Response: 
The Contractor will be provided a username and password to access the Regional 
Eligibility Database (“RED”).  The Contractor can access the RED from anywhere on 
the internet.   

 
Question No. 6 
(Page 3, # 7) By what means is the Contractor to notify all operators of the eligibility determination? Will 
any form of data interface with each transit operator be required?  
 

Response: 
The Contractor may propose a method of notifying the operators of the eligibility 
determination. 

 
Question No. 7 
Will each operator be responsible for entering eligibility information into its own reservation and 
scheduling system?  

 
 
 



Response: 
Yes.  Each operator will be responsible for entering eligibility information into its own 
reservation and scheduling system. 
 

Question No. 8 
(Page 3, #8) How will current paratransit users be notified of the impending expiration of their eligibility 
after the three year period?  
 

Response: 
The RFP states that the Contractor shall notify these passengers via phone call and 
mailed letter (Page 7, Task 8.3).  However, the STA welcomes any innovative, cost-saving 
proposals that ensure ADA passengers are properly notified of their upcoming eligibility 
expiration 90 days in advance of the expiration date. 
 

Question No. 9 
(Page 4, Task 3.1) Will a written application be required of all applicants in advance of a functional 
assessment? Other systems have found that eliminating the written application and replacing it with an in-
person process is more efficient for the applicant and the Contractor. Is this decision up to the Contractor?  
 

Response: 
The STA welcomes any innovative, cost-saving proposals that ensure the Contractor is 
collecting relevant ADA eligibility information from the applicant.   
 

Question No. 10 
(Page 5, Task 4.3 and 4.4) The operators will be required to provide free rides to an in-person assessment 
site. Since the operators will be scheduling the rides with the applicants, can the additional step of a 
confirmation phone call be eliminated? This step can be confusing when confirmation calls are coming 
from two different sources.  
 

Response: 
The transit operators will provide free rides to the in-person assessment (if an in-person 
process is proposed).  However, the Contractor will schedule the ride with the 
paratransit dispatch on behalf of the applicant.  Thus, the confirmation phone call is 
suggested to confirm the date and time of the ride and assessment. 

 
Question No. 11 
(Page 6, Tasks 5 and 6) Will the Contractor be required to issue photo ID cards to all applicants? If so, 
can the cost of the necessary equipment for the ID card process be built into a startup budget? Will some 
data interface be required to transmit ID card data to transit operators? Will the Contractor be responsible 
for replacing lost or stolen ID cards?  
 

Response: 
Yes, the Contractor will be required to issue photo ID cards to all applicants.   
 



Proposals may include building the necessary equipment (digital camera and ID card 
machine) into the budget. 
 
Any information about the ADA eligible applicants will need to be transmitted to the STA 
and transit operators.  The Contractor may propose a method for transmitting ADA 
eligibility information to the STA and transit.   
 
At this time, the STA anticipates the transit operators to be responsible for replacing lost 
and stolen ID cards but bidders are welcome to propose alternatives.    

 
Question No. 12 
(Page 7, Task 7.2) Can notification of STA staff and transit operators of eligibility determinations be 
made via email? Is a particular format required? Are specific data fields required?  

 
Response: 
The Contractor may propose a method of notifying the operators of the eligibility 
determination. 
 
Specific data to be transmitted to the STA and transit operators can be found in Task 11 
(pages 9-10).  

 
Question No. 13 
(Page 7, Task 8.3) While notification of expiring eligibility is important, experience indicates that a large 
number of notified individuals do not respond to such notification. Further, a phone process is very labor 
intensive and likely to have limited results. It is recommended that this provision be rewritten to allow the 
Contractor to propose a simplified notification process that can be implemented at lower cost.  

 
Response: 
The STA welcomes any innovative, cost-saving proposals that ensure ADA passengers 
are properly notified of their upcoming eligibility expiration 90 days in advance of the 
expiration date. 

 
Question No. 14 
(Page 7, Task 8.4) It is only appropriate to conduct eligibility determinations for individuals who respond 
to expiration notification. Thus the penalty should be clarified to apply only to individuals who have 
responded to notification of expiring eligibility. The Contractor cannot be responsible for recertifying 
individuals who do not reapply.  
 
 Response: 

The Contractor will not be penalized for not recertifying existing ADA eligible 
passengers who do not reapply for ADA eligibility prior to their eligibility expiration 
date.    

 
 



Question No. 15 
(Page 9, Task 10) Please clarify what is meant by “Provide disability aids as needed”? Does this mean 
that the Contractor must provide disability aids at the interview site? What aids are required?  
 

Response: 
“Provide disability aids as needed” means that the Contractor is required to provide the 
following disability aids if the applicant needs them: 

• Braille interpretation 
• Large print type 
• Telecommunications display device (TDD) 
• Others as needed. 

 
Some disability aids may be available at some sites. 

 
Question No. 16 
(Page 10, Task 12) Please clarify the Contractor’s responsibility regarding the appeal process. The task 
description indicates that the Contractor must “propose…..a process.” The Deliverable indicates that the 
Contractor must “Conduct and administer………a process.” There is a great difference between these two 
descriptions. Well managed appeal processes are typically separated from the eligibility function to 
provide for an independent review of the appeal. This may be compromised if the Contractor must 
conduct and administer the process.  
 

Response: 
The Contractor may propose a centralized appeals process and how it is to be 
administered.   

 
Question No. 17 
What is the basis for billing for this service?  It is unclear from the proposal whether billing will be on the 
basis of completed determinations, completed functional assessments, staff hours alone, a combination of 
fixed monthly fee and a rate per completed activity, etc.  
 

Response: 
Each proposer should put forth a proposed basis for billing.   
 

Question No. 18 
Will the Contractor handle visitor applications?  
 

Response: 
This function will continue to be handled by each transit operator’s dispatch.  However, 
the Contractor is welcome to propose a more efficient method.  
 

Question No. 19 
How will the Contractor interface with the transit operators to schedule rides to the interview sites? 



Response: 
The Contractor may propose a method of interfacing with paratransit dispatch to 
schedule rides to the interview site.   
 

Question No. 20 
(Page 5, Task 4) Does each jurisdiction have available space for us to conduct interviews and 
assessments?  Or will that be on the contractor to find and procure space? Separately, is there an office 
that could be provided by STA to take calls for assessment services? 
 

Response: 
Each jurisdiction may have available space for the Contractor to conduct interviews and 
assessments.  The Contractor will work with transit operators to determine available 
locations in each of their jurisdictions where ADA eligibility interviews and functional 
assessments can occur.   
 
No, the STA will not provide an office to take calls for assessment services. 

 
Question No. 21 
(Page 5, Task 4) Will the ADA paratransit providers provide rides for individuals to get to the assessment 
location? 
  

Response: 
The transit operators will provide free rides for individuals to get to the assessment 
location. However, the Contractor will schedule the ride with the paratransit dispatch on 
behalf of the applicant.   
 

Question No. 22 
Is there a set budget for this project? 
 

Response: 
Yes. 

 
Question No. 23 
(Page 6, Tasks 5 and 6) Do you require the Contractor to just take the applicant’s picture or also produce 
an ID card, please specify? 
 

Response: 
The Contractor will take the applicant’s picture and produce the ID card.   
 

Question No. 24 
(Page 6, Task 5.5) The Contractor is responsible for offering applicants information about travel training 
– is there a current travel training program in use throughout the County? Does STA want the Contractor 
to also propose offering travel training services? 

 



Response: 
Currently, Solano County does not have a formal countywide travel training program.  
Some transit operators offer travel training for passengers of their local transit service, 
and information exists to assist individuals as they travel throughout Solano County.   
 
Travel training is not required in the RFP.  However, the STA welcomes any additional 
services as a separate line item.  To the extent that additional services are proposed, they 
will not be included in the base evaluation.  The STA reserves the right to include 
additional proposed services in the final contract. 
 

Question No. 25 
(Page 7, Task 8) Does the Contractor have to recertify everyone in the STA database or only those whose 
certifications are set to expire? 
 

Response: 
The Contractor will recertify existing ADA eligible passengers whose eligibility is set to 
expire.   
 

Question No. 26 
Can you provide general program statistics such as the number of current clients, average certifications 
per year, and projected ADA population growth in county? 
 

Response: 
The estimated number of current ADA eligible clients is 3,487.   
 
Solano County received approximately 1,100 applications in FY 2012.   
 

Number of ADA Applications FY 2012* 
SolTrans 405     
Vacaville 260     
Fairfield 375     
Rio Vista 8     
Dixon 22     

Total 1070 
     *Includes new applications and recertifications 

 
 
 
 
 



The projected ADA population growth for Solano County is displayed in the table below.   

Source: Solano Transportation Study for Seniors & People with Disabilities, September 2011 
 
Question No. 27 
Is there a specified DBE goal for this contract? 

 
Response: 
There is not a specified DBE goal for this contract.  
 

Question No. 28 
Is there a pricing form you would like us to use when submitting pricing? 
  

Response: 
The Contractor may submit pricing in any format, as long as it is legible and clearly 
presents relevant information as required by the RFP. 

 
Question No. 29 
If we have additional attachments besides resumes for our proposal, do they count against the 25-page 
response limit?  Also, does the cost proposal count within the 25-page response limit? 
 

Response: 
The additional attachments will not count against the 25-page response limit.  The 25-
page limit includes the cost proposal.    

 
Question No. 30 
Will there be separate contracts with each agency, Fairfield, Suisun Transit, SolTrans, Vacaville and Rio 
Vista?   
 

Response: 
No.  There will only be one contract with the STA. 

 
Question No. 31 
Will all of the identified agencies above be required to contract with the successful bidder?   
 
 



Response: 
No.  There will only be one contract with the STA. 

 
Question No. 32 
Of the 1,100 applications identified in the RFP, does this include all of the above agencies?  If yes, do you 
have a volume breakdown of each agency?  
 

Response: 
Yes.  The estimated 1,100 applications in FY 2012 does include Fairfield and Suisun 
Transit, SolTrans, Vacaville City Coach and Rio Vista Delta Breeze and Dixon Readi-
Ride.   
 

Number of ADA Applications FY 2012* 
SolTrans 405     
Vacaville 260     
Fairfield 375     
Rio Vista 8     
Dixon 22     

Total 1070 
    *Includes new applications and recertifications 

 
Question No. 33 
(Page6, Tasks 5 & 6) Is there a standardized ID Card format used for all transit agencies? Is it a Smart 
Card?  If yes, will the agencies each provide their own supplies and card printer to the contractor or shall 
the bidder identify their own cards?   
 

Response: 
There is a standardized ID card format.  It is not a Smart Card.  The Contractor will 
produce ID cards.  Proposals may include building the necessary equipment into the 
budget. 

 
Question No. 34 
(Page 7, Task 7.1) Please identify the time required to enter one profile into the RED database? 

 
Response: 
Based on STA staff’s understanding, the time required to enter one new profile into the 
RED database is an estimated 2-3 minutes.   

 
Question No. 35 
Do the agencies maintain a scheduling software package other than RED?  If yes, what scheduling 
software is used by each agency? 
 
 
 



Response: 
RED is the Regional Eligibility Database.  The scheduling software the transit agencies 
use is as follows.  SolTrans currently uses Payroll Edits but will be switching to Trapeze 
in approximately 2-3 months.  Fairfield and Suisun Transit uses Trapeze.  Vacaville City 
Coach uses Excel. 

 
Question No. 36 
Is the anticipated budget a cost per evaluation or a monthly fixed fee?  Without a proposed budget format, 
how will these cost proposals be uniformly evaluated? 

 
Response: 
Either budget method is acceptable.  To the extent that the proposer proposes a cost per 
evaluation budget, the STA will project an annual budget based on 1,100 assessments per 
year multiplied by the proposed cost per evaluation in order to compare with proposals 
based on a monthly fixed fee.  However, please note that the STA may award the 
proposer whose proposal presents the best value and is most advantageous to the STA 
and the transit operators.  Accordingly, the STA may not necessarily award the proposer 
with the highest technical ranking or the proposer with the lowest price proposal if doing 
so would not be in the overall best interest of the STA. 
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